
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

 AGENDA 

Tuesday, February 3, 2015 
 

 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4) 

Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1) 

Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5) 

Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 

Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 3, 2015 

   Page 1 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
02/03/2015 
 

  
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, February 3, 2015 - 7:00 p.m. to 10:30 p.m. 

(Times established by Resolution No. 2014-08… commencing at 7:00 p.m., and ending no 
later than 10:30 p.m., which can be extended by motion of the Council.) 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
   

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)            Town Manager William F. Underwood, II 
Vice-Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)     Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)      Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 
 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
 

b. Minutes: 
• November 18, 2014 Town Council Minutes 

 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 

4.  PRESENTATIONS – NONE 
 

Tentative  
Subject to Revision 
 

1 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 3, 2015 

   Page 2 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
02/03/2015 
 

 
5. COMMITTEE REPORTS   
 

a. Virginia Standish, Chair of the Finance Advisory and Audit Committee (FAAC) to 
present the Financial Report for November and December Fiscal Year 2015. 

 
 
6. RESOLUTIONS 

 
a. RESOLUTION NO 2015-10:  (Welcome to Commissioner Melissa 

McKinlay) 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA WELCOMING THE ELECTION OF COMMISSIONER MELISSA 
MCKINLAY AS COUNTY COMMISSIONER FOR DISTRICT 6; EXPRESSING THE TOWN 
COUNCIL’S OPTIMISM FOR WORKING WITH COMMISSIONER MCKINLAY FOR THE 
BENEFIT OF THE RESIDENTS OF THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR DISTRIBUTION OF 
THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  (Requested by Vice-Mayor Jarriel during January 
20, 2015, Town Council Meeting). 

 
 

7. ORDINANCES 
 

a. ORDINANCE NO. 2014-08:  PUBLIC HEARING/SECOND AND FINAL 
READING  (Okeechobee Boulevard Corridor Moratorium) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR A MORATORIUM UNTIL MAY 31, 2015, ON THE 
PROCESSING AND REVIEW OF APPLICATIONS FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN’S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, INCLUDING FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENTS AND 
TEXT AMENDMENTS, RELATING TO COMMERCIAL LAND USES ON PROPERTIES 
FRONTING ON OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD WITHIN THE CORPORATE BOUNDARIES 
OF THE TOWN AS OF DECEMBER 2, 2014; PROVIDING FOR EXEMPTIONS; PROVIDING 
FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
b. ORDINANCE NO. 2015-01:  PUBLIC HEARING/SECOND AND 

FINAL READING  (Wildlife) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE  TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT 
CODE; AMENDING PART I, ENTITLED “ADMINISTRATION AND DEFINITIONS,” 
ARTICLE 10 ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, AND CONSTRUCTION OF 
TERMS”, SECTION 10-015, ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS,” TO AMEND THE DEFINITION 

2 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 3, 2015 

   Page 3 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
02/03/2015 
 

OF WILDLIFE PETS, AND TO DELETE THE DEFINITION OF WILDLIFE PETS FROM 
PART II, ENTITLED “ZONING DISTRICTS,” ARTICLE 20 ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL 
ZONING  DISTRICTS,” SECTION 20-010, ENTITLED “GENERAL PROVISIONS”, 
SECTION (B), ENTITLED “ANIMALS AND LIVESTOCK”;  TO AMEND PART II, 
ENTITLED “ZONING DISTRICTS,” ARTICLE 20 ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL ZONING 
DISTRICTS,” SECTION 20-015, ENTITLED “PERMITTED USES” AND PART II, 
ENTITLED “ZONING DISTRICTS,” ARTICLE 25 ENTITLED “COMMERCIAL ZONING 
DISTRICTS,” SECTION 25-015, ENTITLED “PERMITTED USES,” AND PART II, 
ENTITLED “ZONING DISTRICTS,” ARTICLE 40 ENTITLED “CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT,” SECTION 40-015, ENTITLED “PERMITTED USES” TO CLARIFY THAT 
AVICULTURE USE IN THE AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT, 
EXHIBITION OF WILDLIFE PETS IN THE COMMERCIAL AND COMMERCIAL LOW 
ZONING DISTRICTS, AND WILDLIFE OBSERVATION IN THE CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT ARE PERMITTED AS REGULATED BY STATE LAW; TO DELETE PART III, 
ENTITLED “SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 80 ENTITLED 
“CONDITIONAL USES,” SECTION 80-045, ENTITLED “EXHIBITION OF CLASS I AND 
CLASS II WILDLIFE”, AND SECTION 80-050, ENTITLED “AVICULTURE”; PROVIDING 
FOR INTENT OF THE TOWN TO COMPLY WITH THE STATE’S PREEMPTIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

8. MANAGER’S REPORT – Town Manager Underwood 
 

a.   Agenda Item Report (AIR) - Updates on various activities and issues concerning the 
Town. 
 

9.  OLD BUSINESS - NONE 
 
 

10.  NEW BUSINESS  
 

a. Appointment of new Planning and Zoning Board Member in light of the resignation of 
Board Member Keith Harris effective November 6, 2014. Appointment will be made by 
Councilman Ryan Liang. 
 

b. Discussion on change to Resolution No. 2015-03 in support of the State Road 7 extension 
between Okeechobee Boulevard and Northlake Boulevard to be constructed in Fiscal 
Year 2016.  Original Resolution stated that Palm Beach County was contemplating s 
delay when in fact it was the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT).  (Town 
Attorney Cirullo to explain.) 
 

3 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 3, 2015 

   Page 4 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
02/03/2015 
 

c. Consideration of approval for appreciation letter to be sent to Former Palm Beach County 
Commissioner Jess Santamaria, District 6.  (Requested by Vice-Mayor Jarriel during the 
January 20, 2015, Town Council Meeting.) 

 
 

11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 
b. Town Attorney   

 
c. Town Council Members 
 
 

12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The next regular Town Council Meeting is tentatively scheduled for February 17, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

4 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.a. 

Consent Agenda 
 

Attorney Invoice 

5 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



13 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



14 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



15 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



16 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.b. 

Consent Agenda 
 

Minutes 

November 18, 2015 - Regular Town Council Meeting 

17 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2014 

   Page 1 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
11/18/2014 
 

   
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, November 18, 2014 - 7:00 p.m. to 10:30 p.m. 
(Times established by Resolution No. 2014-08… commencing at 7:00 p.m., and ending no 

later than 10:30 p.m., which can be extended by motion of the Council.) 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 

   
 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)             Town Manager William F. Underwood, II 
Vice-Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)      Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)       Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 

MINUTES 
 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.  Present were Mayor Dave Browning, 
Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel, Councilmen Tom Goltzené, Ryan Liang, and Jim Rockett.  Also present 
were Town Manager Bill Underwood, Town Attorney Mike Cirullo, Town Planning Consultant 
Jim Fleischmann, and Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple.  

 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel requested to amend 7. c. of Addendum # 1 for discussion or direction, and to 
pull Exhibit “A” in 7.c.  
 
Motion: Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve the Agenda, as amended.  
Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote the motion passed 5/0. 

 
 

18 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2014 

   Page 2 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
11/18/2014 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

a. Minutes: 
 

• August 19, 2014 Regular Town Council Meeting 
• September 2, 2014 Regular Town Council Meeting 
• September 11, 2014 Tentative Millage/Budget Town Council Meeting 

 
Motion:  Councilman Liang made a motion to approve the Minutes, as presented. 
Councilman Rockett seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 

 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Keith Harris, 2580 C Road, read letter from Joyce Batcheler, a member of the Roze Horseman’s 
Association who feels the equestrians are being “thrown under the bus” and not being looked 
after within the Town.   
 
Marge Herzog, 966 A Road, noted that on Thursday, November 20, 2014, the Land Owners 
Association Meeting would be held at the Palms West Presbyterian Church. 
 
Phyllis Maniglia, 359 West D Road, a resident since 1989, and is still waiting for equestrian 
trails.  She has also activated her real estate license, and noted people were calling her to ask for 
stalls and she could not recommend any within the Town. It is not safe to ride in Loxahatchee 
Groves.   
 
4. PRESENTATIONS - NONE 
 
5. COMMITTEE REPORTS  - NONE 
 
(Clerk Note:  Resolutions have been moved to Item Number 7. on the Agenda in order to 
accompany the adoption of Ordinance No’s. 2014-06 and 2014-07 concerning the Public 
Hearing on the Day Property.) 

 
6. ORDINANCES  
 

a. ORDINANCE NO. 2014-06: PUBLIC HEARING/SECOND AND FINAL 
READING (Day Property Comprehensive Land Use Change)  

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING AMENDMENT 14-2(SS) TO THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, CONCERNING A SMALL-SCALE 
LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT APPLICATION PROPOSED BY THE OWNERS OF THE 
PROPERTY, WILLIE H. AND FRANKIE J. DAY TO CHANGE THE DESIGNATION OF 

19 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2014 

   Page 3 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
11/18/2014 
 

THE SUBJECT USE OF LAND FROM RURAL RESIDENTIAL (1 DU PER 5 ACRES) TO 
COMMERCIAL LOW TO ACCOMMODATE THE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF A 
MAXIMUM OF 9.3 ACRES OF COMMERCIAL USES LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD AND FOLSOM ROAD, LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR AMENDMENT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN TO REFLECT SUCH CHANGE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo read the title of Ordinance No. 2014-06, and noted this is a public 
hearing. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve Ordinance No. 2014-06.  Vice-
Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion.  Discussion. 
 
No discussion from Council or the audience. 
 
Applicant rep Kerry Kilday, Urban Design Kilday, presented his discussion on the topic.  He 
noted he will still need to come back for site plan approval. 
 
Council and members of the audience discussed notifying the Palm Beach County Board of 
County Commissioners concerning traffic calming devices.  They also discussed the dangerous 
Folsom Road traffic, and an access into the Red Barn parking area from Folsom Road, and speed 
humps. 
 
Upon roll call, vote the motion passed 5/0. 

 
b. ORDINANCE NO. 2014-07: QUASI-JUDICIAL/PUBLIC HEARING/ 

SECOND AND FINAL READING  (Day Property – Rezoning) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING AMENDMENT REZ 14-02 TO THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, CONDERNING A 
REZONING APPLICATION PROPOSED BY THE OWNERS OF THE PROPERTY, WILLIE 
H. AND FRANKIE J. DAY TO CHANGE THE ZONING DESIGNATION OF THE SUBJECT 
PROPERTY FROM AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL (AR) TO COMMERCIAL LOW (CL) 
TO ACCOMMODATE THE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF A MAXIMUM OF 9.3 ACRES 
OF COMMERCIAL USES LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF OKEECHOBEE 
BOULEVARD AND FOLSOM ROAD, LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA; 
PROVIDING FOR AMENDM,ENT TO THE ZONING MAP TO REFLECT SUCH CHANGE; 

20 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2014 

   Page 4 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
11/18/2014 
 

PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo explained the action for Quasi-Judicial Procedures, and then proceeded to 
swear in those in attendance who wished to speak the Quasi-Judicial portion of the meeting. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo read the title of Ordinance No. 2014-07. 
 
Kerry Kilday, of Urban Design Kilday, opened the floor for questions. 
 
Jim Fleischmann, Town Planning Consultant, provided background and the Planning and Zoning 
Board recommendations of approval concerning the eight (8) conditions set forth. 
 
There were no questions. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Liang made a motion to approve Ordinance No. 2014-07 on Second 
and Final Reading.  Vice-Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion.  Upon roll call vote, the 
motion passed 5/0. 
 
7. RESOLUTIONS  

 
a. RESOLUTION NO. 2014-18:  (Accepting Restrictive Covenants for Day 

Property) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA, ACCEPTING THE RESTRICTIVE COVENANT FROM WILLIAM AND FRANKIE 
DAY RELATING TO THE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT FOR COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT ON THEIR PROPERTY LOCATED 
AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD AND FOLSOM ROAD; 
AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY TO TAKE ALL STEPS 
NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE INTENT OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo explained and read the title of Resolution No.2014-18. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Liang made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2014-18. Vice-Mayor 
Jarriel seconded the motion.  No discussion.  Upon Roll call vote the motion passed 5/0. 
 
 

b. RESOLUTION NO. 2014-19:   (Budget Amendment Fiscal Year 2013-2014) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING A BUDGET AMENDMENT FOR THE TOWN’S 
BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2013 AND ENDING 

21 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2014 

   Page 5 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
11/18/2014 
 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Manager Underwood explained elements of the budget amendments. 
 
Council discussed with Mr. Underwood various aspects of the budget activities. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo read the title of Resolution No. 2014-19. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2014-19.  
Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  No discussion.  Upon roll call vote the motion 
passed 5/0. 
 

c. RESOLUTION NO. 2014-20:  (Interlocal Agreement with the Loxahatchee 
Groves Water Control District (LGWCD) for Maintenance of Public Recreational Trails).  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR AND TOWN CLERK TO 
EXECUTE AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR THE TOWN PUBLIC RECREATIONAL 
TRAILS BETWEEN THE LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL DISTRICT AND 
THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR RECORDING OF APPROVED AGREEMENT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Town Manager Underwood explained the incidence with the two agreements, one (1) from the 
Loxahatchee Control Water Control District (LGWCD) and one (1) from the Town. He felt there 
were items in the District agreement that might cause a problem with the Town. He explained 
discrepancies, and stated we want to create a partnership. He prefers the Town agreement rather 
than the District agreement, which he had initially taken off the Agenda.  
 
Council discussed both agreements. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzené made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2014-20 with the 
Town’s Agreement.  Councilman Rockett seconded the motion.  Discussion. 
 
Council had an intense discussion concerning both agreements conditions of the trails, and where to 
commence any work that needs to be done.   
 
Public comments. 
 
Members of the audience expressed their concerns that the community needs to feel safe, and the 
Town and District should share costs; how many dollars it will cost before paying for the job; 
whether there is a deed owned by Southern Timber along the easements; maintenance by the 
District has eliminated a lot of easements; thanks to Council for dealing with a problem that the 
Town has had for a long time; the positive reaction to referencing public recreation trails; looking 
for consistency in the agreement language; writing a check for services when the work has been 
completed; a request to surveying all of the canals; a reference that the District agreement has 

22 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2014 

   Page 6 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
11/18/2014 
 

followed the local bill. 
 
Council followed with discussion differences between the Town and the District. 
 
Mayor Browning asked if this can be tabled until staff can work this out.  Council continued 
discussion. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo read the title of Resolution No. 2014-20 and stated it will be brought back 
for the December 2, 2015 Town Council Meeting. 
 
Upon roll call vote, the motion passed 4/0, with Vice-Mayor Jarriel dissenting. 
 
Mayor Browning called for a break at 8:10 – 8:14 p.m. 
 
Motion:  Vice-Mayor Jarriel made a motion to approve the District’s Interlocal Agreement with the 
District Maintenance Easement Maps, with three (3) changes.  Councilman Liang seconded the 
motion. 
 
In response to a question from Councilman Rockett, Town Attorney Cirullo stated if Council were 
to pass the District’s agreement it would be in conflict with the Town’s Agreement, and if so, it 
would need direction.  Should Council pass both Agreements there would be two (2) different 
directions. 
 
Council continued discussion. 
  
Members of the audience expressed their opinions on the subject.  
 
Upon vote, motion failed 1/4 with Mayor Browning, Councilman Goltzené and Councilman 
Rockett dissenting 
 
 
8. MANAGER’S REPORT – Town Manager Underwood 

 
a. AGENDA ITEM REPORT:  Updates on various activities and issues concerning the 

Town. 
 
b. Palm Beach Sheriff’s Office (PBSO) Monthly Report:  October 2014 
 

Town Manager Underwood provided his report.  
 

Councilman Liang Ryan noted the Town needs a standard for roads and a need to create a road 
policy. 

 
 
 
 

23 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2014 

   Page 7 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
11/18/2014 
 

9. OLD BUSINESS  
 
a. Consideration for Acquisition of Central Palm Beach County Chamber of 

Commerce Building. 
 
Town Manager Underwood provided background on the Chamber building’s statistics, and an 
analysis between current rental and chamber building costs. 
  
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to direct staff to proceed with the purchase of 
the Chamber building.  Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Discussion. 
 
Town Manager Underwood elaborated on problems with the Town offices current location 
 
Council discussed the purchase and the impact on the Town’s capital funds; possibly putting this 
topic up for a vote from the people; how the purchase will benefit the Town in the long run; if 
down the road we do not want it as a town hall it could be a community center.   
 
Members of the audience brought up possible flooding at the Chamber building and if it could 
affect the purchase price; not to abandon the Palms West Plaza and its business, but to make an 
effort for revitalization; appreciation for the roads which have resurfaced; and the Chamber land 
which is owned by Palm Beach County. 
 
Council provided responses. 
 
Upon vote, the motion passed 4/1 with Councilman Goltzené dissenting. 
 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS – NONE 

 
 

11. CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 
No further comments. 
 

b. Town Attorney 
 

Town Attorney Cirullo wished a Happy Thanksgiving to all and stated “Go Gators”. 
 

c. Town Council Members 
 

Councilman Goltzené referencing a recent lawsuit that Council was in agreement on, noted he 
was not going to voice his opinion on every single item as no one would get out of the meeting 
on a timely manner.  He speaks for himself.  He commented it was a great year for the Gators, 
and wished all a Happy Thanksgiving. 

24 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2014 

   Page 8 of 8  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
11/18/2014 
 

 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel stated it was a great year for the “Noles” (Florida State Seminoles) and 
expressed his appreciation to Town Manager Underwood for the work he has done with the 
Chamber.  He also expressed Happy Thanksgiving to all. 

 
Councilman Liang thanked everyone for coming, wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving, stated 
“Go Gators” and advised all the get ready for the impending cold weather. 

 
Councilman Rockett also thanked everyone for coming wished all a Happy Thanksgiving. 

 
Mayor Browning asked Town Manager Underwood if he has a chance to contact Palm Beach 
County concerning doing work from Okeechobee Boulevard to E Road? 
 
Town Manger Underwood stated he had not.  
 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
There being no further business to come before the Town Council, Mayor Browning 
adjourned the meeting at 9:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
_________________________________     __________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   David Browning, Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

These minutes were approved during the February 3, 2015 Town Council Meeting. 
 

 

25 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 5.a. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Financials November and December FY 2015 

26 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Transportation Fund Budget Year-to-Date %
FIRST LOCAL OPTION FUEL TAX (6 CENT) 250,858         19,639           7.8%
SECOND LOCAL OPTION FUEL (5 CENT) 117,768         9,227             7.8%
CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                     -                    

TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 412,423         -                       
Total Revenues 781,049       28,866           3.7%
TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS (6 CT) MAINT. 10,000           1,677               16.8%
TOWN ROADS (6 CT) MAINT. 102,059         9,989               9.8%
DISTRICT ROADS (6 CT) MAINT. 93,738           1,951               2.1%
ROADS AND STREETS (5 CT) -                     -                

SPECIAL PROJECTS (6 CT) -                     -                   0.0%
148th TERR BRIDGE(5)/CULVERT  -                     -                
CONSTRUCTION TOWN RDS & STREETS -                     -                

TRANSFER TO CIP FUND 515,252 -                0.0%
Total Expenses 721,049       13,618           1.9%
Excess(deficiency) 60,000         15,248           
Solid Waste Fund Budget Year-to-Date %

SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENTS 431,846        79,908             18.5%
DISCOUNT FEES (11,660)         (3,345)              28.7%

Revenues Budget Year-to-Date % SWA RECYCLING INCOME 6,700            873                   13.0%
AD VALOREM TAXES @ 1.2000 217,931            42,821            19.6% INTEREST -                 2,252               0.0%
ELECTRIC UTILITY TAX          203,000            22,631            11.1% CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND 14382 -                   0.0%
COMMUNICATION SERVICES TAX    103,352            8,106              7.8% Total Revenues 441,268         79,688             18.1%
COUNTY OCCUPATIONAL LICENSES  5,000                4,262              85.2% CONTRACTUAL-WASTE OVERSIGHT          7,000             2,888               41.3%
FPL FRANCHISE FEE 185,000            0.0% PBC ADMINSTRATION FEE 1% 4,318             766                   17.7%
HAULER LICENSE FEE -                        520                 0.0% POSTAGE & FREIGHT 300                -                       0.0%
PBC WATER UTILITY FRANCHISE 5,050                1,076              21.3% SOLID WASTE CONTRACTOR 414,150         64,521             15.6%
PLANNING & ZONING PERMIT FEES 2,000                680                 34.0% OTHER SANITATION SERVICES 15,000           -                       0.0%
STATE REVENUE SHARING 90,689              13,235            14.6%  LEGAL ADVERTISING             500                -                       0.0%
HALF CENT SALES TAX 243,375            18,784            7.7% MANAGEMENT FEES -                     -                       
GENERAL GOVERNMENT CHARGES 4,000                370                 9.3% Total Expenses 441,268         68,174             15.4%
COST RECOVERY FEES 35,000              9,145              26.1% Excess(deficiency) 11,514             
COURT FINES -                        Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Fund Budget Year-to-Date %
CODE ENFORCEMENT FINES 300                   0.0% CONTRIBUTION FROM TRANSPORTATION FUND 555,252       -                   0.0%
INTEREST 200                   8                     3.9% TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 0.0%

OTHER MISC. INCOME 1,000                0.0%
TRANSFER FROM  FUND BALANCE* 1,000,000         Total Revenues 555,252         -                       0.0%

Total Revenues 2,095,897       121,638          5.8% Develop Town Hall Alternatives -                  -                    -                
Surveying Town Roads 90,374           -                   0.0%

Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date % OGEM Collecting Canal Road -                 -                   0.0%
LEGISLATIVE       42,685              4,099              9.6% Okeechobee and D Road Traffic Light 290,944         -                   0.0%
EXECUTIVE 294,177            46,787            15.9% Drainage 25,000           -                   0.0%
FINANICAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE 33,670              2,500              7.4% Trails 120,000        -                   0.0%
LEGAL COUNSEL 90,000              3,521              3.9% D Road to Southern Blvd -                -                   0.0%
COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING & ZONING 185,702            24,801            13.4% Purchase Roads from LGWCD 28,934          -                   -
OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 1,152,079         13,885            1.2% 555,252        -                      0.0%
LAW ENFORCEMENT 293,584            47,181            16.1% Contract Services Expenditures
PUBLIC WORKS 4,000                628                 15.7% Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date %

Total Expenditures 2,095,897         143,402          6.8% Waste Pro 414,150         64,521             15.6%

Excess(deficiency) -                           (21,763)          Palm Beach County Sheriff 283,084         47,181             16.7%
Underwood Management Services Group 350,355         59,071             16.9%
Goren, Cherof, Doody, Ezrol 90,000           5,463               6.1%

YTD-Total Funds Expen. Budget Tew & Associates 35,000           6,694               19.1%
Land Research Management 20,000           7,802               39.0%

Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date % Engineering Services* 210,000         6,725               3.2%
Total Townwide Budget 3,813,466         225,193          5.9% Frank Schiola 25,000           3,844               15.4%

YEE's Corporation 17,100           2,850               16.7%
Loxahatchee Water Control District 184,651 4,474               2.4%
Total Expenses 1,629,340      208,624            12.8%
* Keshavarez & Assoc.; A&B Engineering; Simmon & White
Represents consumption of fund balance.  This is not true revenue by definition or reflected
in GL in transactions

General Fund Revenue Budget Selected Other Funds

General Fund Revenues

General Fund Expenditures

17% of year elapsed)

Town of Loxahatchee Groves
Financial Activity Report as of  November 30, 2014

AD VALOREM TAXES
FPL FRAN FEE

WATER FRAN FEE ELEC UTIL TAX

COMM SVCS TAX

STATE REV SHARE

1/2 SALES TAX

PBC\OCC BUS TAX
GEN GOVT 
CHARGES

COST RECOV FEES

CODE ENFORC 
FINES

PLAN ZON PERMIT 
FEES

INTEREST

OTH MISC 
INCOME

TRANS FR SANI 
FUND

 -  200,000  400,000  600,000  800,000  1,000,000

AD VALOREM TAXES
ELEC UTIL TAX

COMM SVCS TAX
PBC/OCC BUS TAX

FPL FRAN FEE
HAULER LIC FEE

WATER FRAN FEE
PLAN ZON PERM FEES

STATE REV SHARE
1/2 SALES TAX

GEN GOVT CHARGES
COST RECOV FEES

COURT FINES
CODE ENFORC FINES

INTEREST
OTHER MISC. INCOME
TRANS FR  FUND BAL

General Fund Revenue

Budget YTD

2014-11 FinActRep

27 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



0.17                   Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-311-100-000 Ad Valorem Taxes 42,820.62            42,820.62        -                      217,931                 (175,110.38)             19.6%
Ad Valorem Taxes Subtotal 42,820.62          42,820.62      217,931               (175,110.38)           

001-314-100-000 Electric Utility Tax 22,607.74            22,631.43        -                      203,000                 (180,368.57)             11.1%
001-315-100-000 Communications Services 8,106.21              8,106.21          -                      103,352                 (95,245.79)               7.8%
001-316-200-000 County Occupational License 1,098.27              4,262.32          -                      5,000                     (737.68)                    85.2%

Local Taxes Subtotal 31,812.22          34,999.96      -                     311,352               (276,352.04)           

001-323-100-000 FPL Franchise Fee -                       -                   -                      185,000                 (185,000.00)             0.0%
001-323-125-000 Haulers License Fee 520.00                 520.00             -                      -                         -                            0.0%
001-323-300-000 PBC Water Utility Franchise 448.64                 1,075.65          -                      5,050                     (3,974.35)                 21.3%
001-329-100-000 Planning & Zoning Permit 320.00                 680.00             -                      2,000                     (1,320.00)                 34.0%

Permits, Franchise Fees & Special Subtotal 1,288.64            2,275.65        -                     192,050               (190,294.35)           

001-335-120-000 State Revenue Sharing 6,617.59              13,235.18        -                      90,689                   (77,453.82)               14.6%
001-335-180-000 Half Cent Sales Tax 18,784.11            18,784.11        -                      243,375                 (224,590.89)             7.7%

Intergovernmentall Revenue Subtotal 25,401.70          32,019.29      334,064               (302,044.71)           9.6%

001-341-000-000 General Government Charges 115.00                 370.00             -                      4,000                     (3,630.00)                 9.3%
001-343-349-000 Cost Recovery Fees 9,145.14              9,145.14          -                      35,000                   (25,854.86)               26.1%

Charges for Services Subtotal 9,260.14            9,515.14        -                     39,000                 (29,484.86)             

001-351-100-000 Court Fines -                       -                   -                     -                         -                            
001-354-100-000 Code Enforcement Fines -                       -                   -                      300                        (300.00)                    0.0%

Code Enforcement Fines Subtotal -                     -                 -                     300                      (300.00)                  

001-361-100-000 Interest 5.23                     7.70                  -                      200                        (192.30)                    3.9%
001-369-000-000 Other Misc Income -                       -                   -                      1,000                     (1,000.00)                 0.0%

Other Misc Revenue Subtotal 5.23                   7.70                -                     1,200                   (1,192.30)               

001-381-305-000 Transfer from CIP Fund -                     -                 -                     1,000,000            (1,000,000.00)        #N/A
001-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance* -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            

Other Non-operating Sources Subotal -                     -                 1,000,000            -                          

Grand Total Revenue 110,588.55        121,638.36    -                     2,095,897            (1,974,778.64)        5.8%

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2014

General Fund
Revenues

UMSG,LLC
Page 1 of 6

Corrected: 1/23/2015

28 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



0.17                   Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-511-310-000 Professional Services -                       -                   -                      650                        650.00                      0.0%
001-511-400-000 Travel -                       -                   -                      3,000                     3,000.00                   0.0%
001-511-492-000 Other Operating Expenses -                       -                   -                      1,500                     1,500.00                   0.0%
001-511-499-000 Other Current Charges - Council Reimbursement 2,500.00              5,000.00          -                      30,000                   27,500.00                 8.3%
001-511-500-000 Education & Training -                       -                   -                      1,000                     1,000.00                   0.0%
001-511-510-000 Office Supplies -                       -                   -                      300                        300.00                      0.0%
001-511-520-000 Operating Supplies -                       -                   -                      300                        300.00                      0.0%
001-511-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions -                       1,289.00          -                      1,935                     646.00                      66.6%
001-511-820-000 Special Events/Contributions 310.05                 310.05             -                      4,000                     3,689.95                   7.8%

Legislative Total 2,810.05            6,599.05        -                     42,685                 38,585.95               15.5%

001-512-340-000 Other Services 22,471.08            44,942.16        -                      269,653                 224,710.84               16.7%
001-512-400-000 Travel 26.47                   26.47                -                      1,500                     1,473.53                   1.8%
001-512-420-000 Postage & Freight - NEW 26.31                   36.37                -                      1,000                     963.63                      3.6%
001-512-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                   -                      500                        500.00                      0.0%
001-512-492-000 Other Operating Expenses 2.00                     2.00                  -                      944                        942.00                      0.2%
001-512-493-000 Election Expense -                       -                   -                      8,010                     8,010.00                   0.0%
001-512-510-000 Office Supplies 1,352.01              1,768.99          -                      12,000                   10,231.01                 14.7%
001-512-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions 11.37                   11.37                -                      570                        558.63                      2.0%

Executive Total 23,889.24          46,787.36      294,177               247,389.64             15.9%

001-513-320-000 Accounting and Auditing -                       2,500.00          -                      18,000                   15,500.00                 13.9%
001-513-470-000 Printing and Binding -                       -                   -                      1,751                     1,751.00                   0.0%
001-513-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                   -                      2,000                     2,000.00                   0.0%
001-513-491-000 Computer Services -                       -                   -                      11,919                   11,919.00                 
001-513-493-000 Election Expense (moved) -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%

Financial & Administrative Total -                     2,500.00        33,670                 31,170.00               7.4%

001-514-310-000 Professional Services 3,520.70              3,520.70          -                      90,000                   86,479.30                 3.9%
Legal Total 3,520.70            3,520.70        90,000                 86,479.30               3.9%

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2014

General Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 2 of 6

Corrected: 1/23/2015

29 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



0.17                   Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-515-310-000 Professional Services 668.75                 668.75             -                      40,000                   39,331.25                 1.7%
001-515-340-000 Other Services 6,725.17              13,450.34        -                      80,702                   67,251.66                 16.7%
001-515-343-000 Planning & Zoning Contract 600.00                 600.00             -                      20,000                   19,400.00                 3.0%
001-515-347-000 Comprehensive Plan -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
001-515-349-000 Cost Recovery Expenditure 9,144.69              9,144.69          -                      35,000                   25,855.31                 26.1%
001-515-490-000 Legal Advertising - NEW 237.36                 937.36             -                      10,000                   9,062.64                   9.4%

Comprehensive Planning & Zoning Total 17,375.97          24,801.14      185,702               160,900.86             13.4%

001-519-315-000 Special Magistrate 997.50                 1,042.50          -                      16,000                   14,957.50                 6.5%
001-519-354-000 Code Compliance 2,493.75              6,341.25          -                      38,000                   31,658.75                 16.7%
001-519-410-000 Communications Services 685.15                 738.15             -                      6,100                     5,361.85                   12.1%
001-519-440-000 Rentals and Leases 1,849.79              3,638.90          -                      34,783                   31,144.10                 10.5%
001-519-450-000 Insurance -                       -                   -                      18,000                   18,000.00                 0.0%
001-519-460-000 Repair & Maint - Building 300.00                 900.00             -                      3,600                     2,700.00                   25.0%
001-519-470-000 Printing and Binding -                       -                   -                      -                            0.0%
001-519-480-000 Promotional Activities -                       -                   -                      -                            0.0%
001-519-490-000 Computer Repair 748.00                 748.00             -                      5,500                     4,752.00                   13.6%
001-519-491-000 Computer Services 266.00                 266.00             -                      7,292                     7,026.00                   3.6%
001-519-494-000 Inspector General Office -                       -                   -                      5,280                     5,280.00                   0.0%
001-519-810-000 Aids to Govt Agencies Grant - LGWCD -                       -                   -                      -                            
001-519-820-000 Loxahatchee Groves CERT -                       210.30             -                      2,000                     1,789.70                   10.5%
001-519-900-000 Transfer toTransportation Fund -                       -                   -                      0.0%
001-519-910-000 Transfer to Sanitation Fund
001-519-920-000 Transfer to Capital Projects
001-519-990-000 Contingency -                       -                   -                      15,524                   15,524.00                 0.0%
001-519-998-000 Transfer To Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      1,000,000              1,000,000.00           

Other Governmental Services Total 7,340.19            13,885.10      152,079               138,193.90             9.1%

001-521-341-000 Professional Services-PBSO 23,590.33            47,180.66        -                      283,084                 235,903.34               16.7%
001-521-342-000 Contractual-ADDL PBSO -                       -                   -                      10,500                   10,500.00                 0.0%

Law Enforcement Total 23,590.33          47,180.66      293,584               246,403.34             16.2%

001-539-310-000 Other Services -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
001-539-340-000 Professional Services 221.25                 627.50             -                      4,000                     3,372.50                   15.7%

Public Works Total 221.25               627.50           4,000                   3,372.50                 15.7%

Grand Total Expenditure 78,747.73          145,901.51    -                     2,095,897            1,952,495.49         7.0%

Net Revenue 31,840.82          (24,263.15)     -                         

General Fund
Expenditures

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES

AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2014

UMSG,LLC
Page 3 of 6

Corrected: 1/23/2015

30 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



0.17                   Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-312-410-000 1st Local Option Fuel Tax (1 to 6 cent) 19,639.03            19,639.03        -                      250,858                 (231,218.97)             7.8%
101-312-420-000 2nd Local Option Fuel Tax (1 to 5 cent) 9,226.50              9,226.50          -                      117,768                 (108,541.50)             7.8%
101-363-990-000 Contribution from General Fund -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
101-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      412,423                 (412,423.00)             0.0%

Total Revenue 28,865.53          28,865.53      781,049               (752,183)                3.7%
Represents consumption of fund balance.  This is not true revenue by definition or reflected in GL in transactions

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-541-467-000 Traffic Control Signs (6 ct) Maint. -                       1,677.00          -                      10,000                   8,323.00                   16.8%
101-541-468-000 Non-District Roads (6 ct) Maint. 9,779.38              9,989.38          -                      102,059                 92,069.62                 9.8%
101-541-469-000 District Roads (6 ct) Maint. -                       1,951.29          -                      93,738                   91,786.71                 2.1%
101-541-631-000 Road and Streets (5 cent) -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
101-541-632-000 Special Projects (6 cent) -                       -                   -                      60,000                   60,000.00                 0.0%
101-541-634-000 148th Terr Bridge (5)/Culvert -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
101-541-636-000 Construct Town Rds & Sts -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
101-541-920-000 Transfer to Capital Projects -                       -                   -                      515,252                 515,252.00               0.0%
101-541-990-000 Transfer to Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
101-541-996-000 Transfer to Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%

Total Expenditure 9,779.38            13,617.67      -                     781,049               767,431                  1.9%

Net Revenue 19,086.15          15,247.86      -                       

Transportation Fund
Expenditures

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2014

Transportation Fund
Revenues

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES

UMSG,LLC
Page 4 of 6

Corrected: 1/23/2015

31 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



0.17                   Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

305-363-990-000 Contributions from General Fund -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
305-363-991-000 Contributions from Transportation Fund -                       -                   -                      555,252                 (555,252.00)             0.0%
305-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      1,000,000              (1,000,000.00)          0.0%

Total Revenue -                     -                 -                     1,555,252            (1,555,252.00)        0.0%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

305-519-600-000 Develop Town Hall Alternatives -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
305-541-610-000 Surveying Town Roads -                       -                   -                      90,374                   90,374.00                 0.0%
305-541-630-000 Okeechobee and D Road Traffic Light -                       -                   -                      290,944                 290,944.00               0.0%
305-541-640-000 Town Roads OGEM Projects -                       -                   -                      25,000                   25,000.00                 0.0%
305-541-650-000 Trails -                       -                   -                      120,000                 120,000.00               0.0%
305-541-654-000 Purchase Roads from LGWCD -                       -                   -                      28,934                   28,934.00                 0.0%
305-581-001-000 Interfund Transfer Out To GF -                     -                 -                     1,000,000            1,000,000.00         

Total Expenditure -                     -                 -                     1,555,252            1,555,252               0.0%

Net Revenue -                     -                 -                       

Revenues

Capital Improvement Program
Expenditures

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2014

Capital Improvement Program

UMSG,LLC
Page 5 of 6

Corrected: 1/23/2015

32 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



0.17                   Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-323-125-000 Haulers Licensing Fee - MOVED TO GF -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
405-325-205-000 Solid Waste Assessments 79,907.97            79,907.97        -                      431,846                 (351,938.03)             18.5%
405-325-206-000 Discount Fees (3,345.05)             (3,345.05)         -                      (11,660)                  8,314.95                   28.7%
405-343-120-000 SWA Recycling Income -                       873.02             -                      6,700                     (5,826.98)                 13.0%
405-361-100-000 Interest 2,251.71              2,251.71          -                      -                         -                            
405-363-990-000 Contributions from General Fund -                       -                   -                      14,382                   (14,382.00)               0.0%

Total Revenue 78,814.63          79,687.65      -                     441,268               (363,832.06)           18.1%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-534-345-000 Contractual - Waste Over 1,470.00              2,887.50          -                      7,000                     4,112.50                   41.3%
405-534-346-000 PBC Administration Fee 1 765.63                 765.63             -                      4,318                     3,552.37                   17.7%
405-534-420-000 Postage & Freight -                       -                   -                      300                        300.00                      0.0%
405-534-434-000 Solid Waste Contractor 33,512.50            64,520.56        -                      414,150                 349,629.44               15.6%
405-534-436-000 Other Sanitation Service -                       -                   -                      15,000                   15,000.00                 0.0%
405-534-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                   -                      500                        500.00                      0.0%
405-534-595-000 TOLG Management Fee -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%

Total Expenditure 35,748.13          68,173.69      -                     441,268               373,094.31             15.4%

Net Revenue 43,066.50          11,513.96      -                       

Solid Waste Fund
Revenues

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2014

Note:  YTD Fines credited to Service Provider invoicing - $4500.00

UMSG,LLC
Page 6 of 6

Corrected: 1/23/2015

33 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Transportation Fund Budget Year-to-Date %
FIRST LOCAL OPTION FUEL TAX (6 CENT) 250,858         41,474           16.5%
SECOND LOCAL OPTION FUEL (5 CENT) 117,768         19,552           16.6%
CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                     -                    

TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 412,423         -                       
Total Revenues 781,049       61,026           7.8%
TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS (6 CT) MAINT. 10,000           4,007               40.1%
TOWN ROADS (6 CT) MAINT. 102,059         20,940             20.5%
DISTRICT ROADS (6 CT) MAINT. 93,738           1,951               2.1%
ROADS AND STREETS (5 CT) -                     -                

SPECIAL PROJECTS (6 CT) 60,000           -                   0.0%
148th TERR BRIDGE(5)/CULVERT  -                     -                
CONSTRUCTION TOWN RDS & STREETS -                     -                

TRANSFER TO CIP FUND 515,252 -                0.0%
Total Expenses 781,049       26,897           3.4%
Excess(deficiency) -                  34,128           
Solid Waste Fund Budget Year-to-Date %

SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENTS 431,846        300,416           69.6%
DISCOUNT FEES (11,660)         (12,094)            103.7%

Revenues Budget Year-to-Date % SWA RECYCLING INCOME 6,700            873                   13.0%
AD VALOREM TAXES @ 1.2000 217,931            154,685          71.0% INTEREST -                 2,252               0.0%
ELECTRIC UTILITY TAX          203,000            40,471            19.9% CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND 14382 -                   0.0%
COMMUNICATION SERVICES TAX    103,352            16,340            15.8% Total Revenues 441,268         291,447           66.0%
COUNTY OCCUPATIONAL LICENSES  5,000                4,548              91.0% CONTRACTUAL-WASTE OVERSIGHT          7,000             4,620               66.0%
FPL FRANCHISE FEE 185,000            40,623            22.0% PBC ADMINSTRATION FEE 1% 4,318             2,883               66.8%
HAULER LICENSE FEE -                        520                 0.0% POSTAGE & FREIGHT 300                -                       0.0%
PBC WATER UTILITY FRANCHISE 5,050                1,543              30.6% SOLID WASTE CONTRACTOR 414,150         95,533             23.1%
PLANNING & ZONING PERMIT FEES 2,000                1,571              78.5% OTHER SANITATION SERVICES 15,000           -                       0.0%
STATE REVENUE SHARING 90,689              19,853            21.9%  LEGAL ADVERTISING             500                -                       0.0%
HALF CENT SALES TAX 243,375            38,362            15.8% MANAGEMENT FEES -                     -                       
GENERAL GOVERNMENT CHARGES 4,000                610                 15.3% Total Expenses 441,268         103,036           23.4%
COST RECOVERY FEES 35,000              22,442            64.1% Excess(deficiency) 188,410           
COURT FINES -                        Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Fund Budget Year-to-Date %
CODE ENFORCEMENT FINES 300                   0.0% CONTRIBUTION FROM TRANSPORTATION FUND 555,252       -                   0.0%
INTEREST 200                   11                   5.3% TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 0.0%

OTHER MISC. INCOME 1,000                0.0% Total Revenues 555,252         -                       0.0%
TRANSFER FROM  FUND BALANCE* 1,000,000         

Total Revenues 2,095,897       341,579          16.3% Develop Town Hall Alternatives -                  -                    -                
Surveying Town Roads 90,374           -                   0.0%

Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date % OGEM Collecting Canal Road -                 -                   0.0%
LEGISLATIVE       42,685              11,017            25.8% Okeechobee and D Road Traffic Light 290,944         -                   0.0%
EXECUTIVE 294,177            69,585            23.7% Drainage 25,000           -                   0.0%
FINANICAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE 33,670              2,500              7.4% Trails 120,000        -                   0.0%
LEGAL COUNSEL 90,000              11,784            13.1% D Road to Southern Blvd -                -                   0.0%
COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING & ZONING 185,702            68,442            36.9% Purchase Roads from LGWCD 28,934          -                   -
OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 1,152,079         18,233            1.6% 555,252        -                      0.0%
LAW ENFORCEMENT 293,584            70,771            24.1% Contract Services Expenditures
PUBLIC WORKS 4,000                860                 21.5% Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date %

Total Expenditures 2,095,897         253,193          12.1% Waste Pro 414,150         95,533             23.1%

Excess(deficiency) -                           88,386            Palm Beach County Sheriff 283,084         70,771             25.0%
Underwood Management Services Group 350,355         90,793             25.9%
Goren, Cherof, Doody, Ezrol 90,000           15,503             17.2%

YTD-Total Funds Expen. Budget Tew & Associates 35,000           8,584               24.5%
Land Research Management 20,000           14,827             74.1%

Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date % Engineering Services* 210,000         14,393             6.9%
Total Townwide Budget 3,873,466         383,127          9.9% Frank Schiola 25,000           6,259               25.0%

YEE's Corporation 17,100           4,275               25.0%
Loxahatchee Water Control District 184,651 4,474               2.4%
Total Expenses 1,629,340      325,411            20.0%
* Keshavarez & Assoc.; A&B Engineering; Simmon & White
Represents consumption of fund balance.  This is not true revenue by definition or reflected
in GL in transactions

25% of year elapsed)

Town of Loxahatchee Groves
Financial Activity Report as of  December 31, 2014

General Fund Revenue Budget Selected Other Funds

General Fund Revenues

General Fund Expenditures

AD VALOREM TAXES
FPL FRAN FEE

WATER FRAN FEE ELEC UTIL TAX

COMM SVCS TAX

STATE REV SHARE

1/2 SALES TAX

PBC\OCC BUS TAX
GEN GOVT 
CHARGES

COST RECOV FEES

CODE ENFORC 
FINES

PLAN ZON PERMIT 
FEES

INTEREST

OTH MISC 
INCOME

TRANS FR SANI 
FUND

 -  200,000  400,000  600,000  800,000  1,000,000

AD VALOREM TAXES
ELEC UTIL TAX

COMM SVCS TAX
PBC/OCC BUS TAX

FPL FRAN FEE
HAULER LIC FEE

WATER FRAN FEE
PLAN ZON PERM FEES

STATE REV SHARE
1/2 SALES TAX

GEN GOVT CHARGES
COST RECOV FEES

COURT FINES
CODE ENFORC FINES

INTEREST
OTHER MISC. INCOME
TRANS FR  FUND BAL

General Fund Revenue

Budget YTD

2014-12 FinActRep

34 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



0.25                   Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-311-100-000 Ad Valorem Taxes 111,864.70          154,685.32      -                      217,931                 (63,245.68)               71.0%
Ad Valorem Taxes Subtotal 111,864.70        154,685.32    217,931               (63,245.68)             

001-314-100-000 Electric Utility Tax 17,839.99            40,471.42        -                      203,000                 (162,528.58)             19.9%
001-315-100-000 Communications Services 8,233.33              16,339.54        -                      103,352                 (87,012.46)               15.8%
001-316-200-000 County Occupational License 285.25                 4,547.57          -                      5,000                     (452.43)                    91.0%

Local Taxes Subtotal 26,358.57          61,358.53      -                    311,352               (249,993.47)           

001-323-100-000 FPL Franchise Fee 40,623.13            40,623.13        -                      185,000                 (144,376.87)             22.0%
001-323-125-000 Haulers License Fee -                       520.00             -                      -                         -                            0.0%
001-323-300-000 PBC Water Utility Franchise 467.73                 1,543.38          -                      5,050                     (3,506.62)                 30.6%
001-329-100-000 Planning & Zoning Permit 890.75                 1,570.75          -                      2,000                     (429.25)                    78.5%

Permits, Franchise Fees & Special Subtotal 41,981.61          44,257.26      -                    192,050               (148,312.74)           

001-335-120-000 State Revenue Sharing 6,617.59              19,852.77        -                      90,689                   (70,836.23)               21.9%
001-335-180-000 Half Cent Sales Tax 19,578.35            38,362.46        -                      243,375                 (205,012.54)             15.8%

Intergovernmentall Revenue Subtotal 26,195.94          58,215.23      334,064               (275,848.77)           17.4%

001-341-000-000 General Government Charges 240.00                 610.00             -                      4,000                     (3,390.00)                 15.3%
001-343-349-000 Cost Recovery Fees 13,297.07            22,442.21        -                      35,000                   (12,557.79)               64.1%

Charges for Services Subtotal 13,537.07          23,052.21      -                    39,000                 (15,947.79)             

001-351-100-000 Court Fines -                       -                   -                    -                         -                            
001-354-100-000 Code Enforcement Fines -                       -                   -                      300                        (300.00)                    0.0%

Code Enforcement Fines Subtotal -                     -                 -                    300                      (300.00)                  

001-361-100-000 Interest 2.91                     10.61                -                      200                        (189.39)                    5.3%
001-369-000-000 Other Misc Income -                       -                   -                      1,000                     (1,000.00)                 0.0%

Other Misc Revenue Subtotal 2.91                   10.61              -                    1,200                   (1,189.39)               

001-381-305-000 Transfer from CIP Fund -                     -                 -                    1,000,000            (1,000,000.00)        #N/A
001-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance* -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            

Other Non-operating Sources Subotal -                     -                 1,000,000            -                          

Grand Total Revenue 219,940.80        341,579.16    -                    2,095,897            (1,754,837.84)        16.3%

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014

General Fund
Revenues

UMSG,LLC
Page 1 of 6

Corrected: 1/23/2015

35 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



0.25                   Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-511-310-000 Professional Services -                       -                   -                      650                        650.00                      0.0%
001-511-400-000 Travel -                       -                   -                      3,000                     3,000.00                   0.0%
001-511-492-000 Other Operating Expenses 1,259.70              1,259.70          -                      1,500                     240.30                      84.0%
001-511-499-000 Other Current Charges - Council Reimbursement 2,500.00              7,500.00          -                      30,000                   25,000.00                 16.7%
001-511-500-000 Education & Training -                       -                   -                      1,000                     1,000.00                   0.0%
001-511-510-000 Office Supplies -                       -                   -                      300                        300.00                      0.0%
001-511-520-000 Operating Supplies -                       -                   -                      300                        300.00                      0.0%
001-511-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions 346.20                 1,635.20          -                      1,935                     299.80                      84.5%
001-511-820-000 Special Events/Contributions 312.40                 622.45             -                      4,000                     3,377.55                   15.6%

Legislative Total 4,418.30            11,017.35      -                    42,685                 34,167.65               25.8%

001-512-340-000 Other Services 22,471.08            67,413.24        -                      269,653                 202,239.76               25.0%
001-512-400-000 Travel -                       26.47                -                      1,500                     1,473.53                   1.8%
001-512-420-000 Postage & Freight - NEW 61.84                   98.21                -                      1,000                     901.79                      9.8%
001-512-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                   -                      500                        500.00                      0.0%
001-512-492-000 Other Operating Expenses -                       2.00                  -                      944                        942.00                      0.2%
001-512-493-000 Election Expense -                       -                   -                      8,010                     8,010.00                   0.0%
001-512-510-000 Office Supplies 264.85                 2,033.84          -                      12,000                   9,966.16                   16.9%
001-512-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions -                       11.37                -                      570                        558.63                      2.0%

Executive Total 22,797.77          69,585.13      294,177               224,591.87             23.7%

001-513-320-000 Accounting and Auditing -                       2,500.00          -                      18,000                   15,500.00                 13.9%
001-513-470-000 Printing and Binding -                       -                   -                      1,751                     1,751.00                   0.0%
001-513-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                   -                      2,000                     2,000.00                   0.0%
001-513-491-000 Computer Services -                       -                   -                      11,919                   11,919.00                 
001-513-493-000 Election Expense (moved) -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%

Financial & Administrative Total -                     2,500.00        33,670                 31,170.00               7.4%

001-514-310-000 Professional Services 8,263.65              11,784.35        -                      90,000                   83,645.82                 13.1%
Legal Total 8,263.65            11,784.35      90,000                 83,645.82               13.1%

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014

General Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 2 of 6

Corrected: 1/23/2015

36 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



0.25                   Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-515-310-000 Professional Services 14,767.50            28,886.59        -                      40,000                   11,113.41                 72.2%
001-515-340-000 Other Services 6,725.17              13,450.34        -                      80,702                   67,251.66                 16.7%
001-515-343-000 Planning & Zoning Contract 562.50                 1,162.50          -                      20,000                   18,837.50                 5.8%
001-515-347-000 Comprehensive Plan -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
001-515-349-000 Cost Recovery Expenditure 13,297.05            22,441.74        -                      35,000                   12,558.26                 64.1%
001-515-490-000 Legal Advertising - NEW 1,563.44              2,500.80          -                      10,000                   7,499.20                   25.0%

Comprehensive Planning & Zoning Total 36,915.66          68,441.97      185,702               117,260.03             36.9%

001-519-315-000 Special Magistrate 135.00                 1,177.50          -                      16,000                   14,822.50                 7.4%
001-519-354-000 Code Compliance 1,938.75              8,280.00          -                      38,000                   29,720.00                 21.8%
001-519-410-000 Communications Services 274.82                 1,012.97          -                      6,100                     5,087.03                   16.6%
001-519-440-000 Rentals and Leases 1,866.76              5,505.66          -                      34,783                   29,277.34                 15.8%
001-519-450-000 Insurance -                       -                   -                      18,000                   18,000.00                 0.0%
001-519-460-000 Repair & Maint - Building -                       900.00             -                      3,600                     2,700.00                   25.0%
001-519-470-000 Printing and Binding  -                   -                      -                            0.0%
001-519-480-000 Promotional Activities  -                   -                      -                            0.0%
001-519-490-000 Computer Repair -                       748.00             -                      5,500                     4,752.00                   13.6%
001-519-491-000 Computer Services 133.00                 399.00             -                      7,292                     6,893.00                   5.5%
001-519-494-000 Inspector General Office -                       -                   -                      5,280                     5,280.00                   0.0%
001-519-810-000 Aids to Govt Agencies Grant - LGWCD -                       -                   -                      -                            
001-519-820-000 Loxahatchee Groves CERT -                       210.30             -                      2,000                     1,789.70                   10.5%
001-519-900-000 Transfer toTransportation Fund -                        -                      0.0%
001-519-910-000 Transfer to Sanitation Fund -                        
001-519-920-000 Transfer to Capital Projects -                        
001-519-990-000 Contingency -                       -                   -                      15,524                   15,524.00                 0.0%
001-519-998-000 Transfer To Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      1,000,000              1,000,000.00           

Other Governmental Services Total 4,348.33            18,233.43      152,079               133,845.57             12.0%

001-521-341-000 Professional Services-PBSO 23,590.33            70,770.99        -                      283,084                 212,313.01               25.0%
001-521-342-000 Contractual-ADDL PBSO -                       -                   -                      10,500                   10,500.00                 0.0%

Law Enforcement Total 23,590.33          70,770.99      293,584               222,813.01             24.2%

001-539-310-000 Other Services -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
001-539-340-000 Professional Services 232.50                 860.00             -                      4,000                     3,140.00                   21.5%

Public Works Total 232.50               860.00           4,000                   3,140.00                 21.5%

Grand Total Expenditure 100,566.54        253,193.22    -                    2,095,897            1,850,633.95         12.1%

Net Revenue 119,374.26        88,385.94      -                         

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014

General Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 3 of 6

Corrected: 1/23/2015

37 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



0.25                   Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-312-410-000 1st Local Option Fuel Tax (1 to 6 cent) 21,834.61            41,473.64        -                      250,858                 (209,384.36)             16.5%
101-312-420-000 2nd Local Option Fuel Tax (1 to 5 cent) 10,325.39            19,551.89        -                      117,768                 (98,216.11)               16.6%
101-363-990-000 Contribution from General Fund -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
101-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      412,423                 (412,423.00)             0.0%

Total Revenue 32,160.00          61,025.53      781,049               (720,023)                7.8%
Represents consumption of fund balance.  This is not true revenue by definition or reflected in GL in transactions

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-541-467-000 Traffic Control Signs (6 ct) Maint. 2,329.50              4,006.50          -                      10,000                   5,993.50                   40.1%
101-541-468-000 Non-District Roads (6 ct) Maint. 10,950.32            20,939.70        -                      102,059                 81,119.30                 20.5%
101-541-469-000 District Roads (6 ct) Maint. -                       1,951.29          -                      93,738                   91,786.71                 2.1%
101-541-631-000 Road and Streets (5 cent) -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
101-541-632-000 Special Projects (6 cent) -                       -                   -                      60,000                   60,000.00                 0.0%
101-541-634-000 148th Terr Bridge (5)/Culvert -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
101-541-636-000 Construct Town Rds & Sts -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
101-541-920-000 Transfer to Capital Projects -                       -                   -                      515,252                 515,252.00               0.0%
101-541-990-000 Transfer to Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
101-541-996-000 Transfer to Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%

Total Expenditure 13,279.82          26,897.49      -                    781,049               754,152                  3.4%

Net Revenue 18,880.18          34,128.04      -                       

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014

Transportation Fund
Revenues

Transportation Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 4 of 6

Corrected: 1/23/2015

38 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



0.25                   Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

305-363-990-000 Contributions from General Fund -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
305-363-991-000 Contributions from Transportation Fund -                       -                   -                      555,252                 (555,252.00)             0.0%
305-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      1,000,000              (1,000,000.00)          0.0%

Total Revenue -                     -                 -                    1,555,252            (1,555,252.00)        0.0%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

305-519-600-000 Develop Town Hall Alternatives -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
305-541-610-000 Surveying Town Roads -                       -                   -                      90,374                   90,374.00                 0.0%
305-541-630-000 Okeechobee and D Road Traffic Light -                       -                   -                      290,944                 290,944.00               0.0%
305-541-640-000 Town Roads OGEM Projects -                       -                   -                      25,000                   25,000.00                 0.0%
305-541-650-000 Trails -                       -                   -                      120,000                 120,000.00               0.0%
305-541-654-000 Purchase Roads from LGWCD -                       -                   -                      28,934                   28,934.00                 0.0%
305-581-001-000 Interfund Transfer Out To GF -                     -                 -                    1,000,000            1,000,000.00         

Total Expenditure -                     -                 -                    1,555,252            1,555,252               0.0%

Net Revenue -                     -                 -                       

Capital Improvement Program

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014

Revenues

Capital Improvement Program
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 5 of 6

Corrected: 1/23/2015

39 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



0.25                   Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-323-125-000 Haulers Licensing Fee - MOVED TO GF -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
405-325-205-000 Solid Waste Assessments 220,508.22          300,416.19      -                      431,846                 (131,429.81)             69.6%
405-325-206-000 Discount Fees (8,749.24)             (12,094.29)       -                      (11,660)                  (434.29)                    103.7%
405-343-120-000 SWA Recycling Income -                       873.02             -                      6,700                     (5,826.98)                 13.0%
405-361-100-000 Interest -                       2,251.71          -                      -                         -                            
405-363-990-000 Contributions from General Fund -                       -                   -                      14,382                   (14,382.00)               0.0%

Total Revenue 211,758.98        291,446.63    -                    441,268               (152,073.08)           66.0%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-534-345-000 Contractual - Waste Over 1,732.50              4,620.00          -                      7,000                     2,380.00                   66.0%
405-534-346-000 PBC Administration Fee 1 2,117.59              2,883.22          -                      4,318                     1,434.78                   66.8%
405-534-420-000 Postage & Freight -                       -                   -                      300                        300.00                      0.0%
405-534-434-000 Solid Waste Contractor 31,012.50            95,533.06        -                      414,150                 318,616.94               23.1%
405-534-436-000 Other Sanitation Service -                       -                   -                      15,000                   15,000.00                 0.0%
405-534-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                   -                      500                        500.00                      0.0%
405-534-595-000 TOLG Management Fee -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%

Total Expenditure 34,862.59          103,036.28    -                    441,268               338,231.72             23.4%

Net Revenue 176,896.39        188,410.35    -                       

Note:  YTD Fines credited to Service Provider invoicing - $8000.00

Solid Waste Fund
Revenues

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014

UMSG,LLC
Page 6 of 6

Corrected: 1/23/2015

40 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 6.a. 

RESOLUTIONS 

Resolution No. 2015-10 

(Welcome Commissioner Melissa McKinlay) 

41 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-10 
 

{00055842.1 1574-0702400 }  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA WELCOMING THE ELECTION 
OF COMMISSIONER MELISSA MCKINLAY AS COUNTY 
COMMISSIONER FOR DISTRICT 6; EXPRESSING THE TOWN 
COUNCIL’S OPTIMISM FOR WORKING WITH COMMISSIONER 
MCKINLAY FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE RESIDENTS OF THE TOWN; 
PROVIDING FOR DISTRIBUTION OF THIS RESOLUTION; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Melissa McKinlay was elected as Palm Beach County Commissioner for 

District 6 at the November 4, 2014, election; and 

 WHEREAS, District 6 includes the Town of Loxahatchee Groves; and,       

 WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves welcomes 

Commissioner McKinlay as a representative of the Town and its residents, and looks forward to 

working with Commissioner McKinlay on interests that affect Palm Beach County and the Town 

of Loxahatchee Groves.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 

Section 2. The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, 

congratulates Melissa McKinlay and welcomes her election as Palm Beach County 

Commissioner for District 6, which includes the Town of Loxahatchee Groves.  The Town 

Council expresses its optimism and expectation of working with Commissioner McKinlay for the 

benefit of the Town and its residents.   

  Section 3. The Town Clerk is directed to transmit a copy of this Resolution to 

County Commissioner Melissa McKinlay, as well as all members of the Palm Beach County 

42 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-009 
     
 

{00055842.1 1574-0702400 } Page 2 of 3 

Commission.  

Section 4. If any clause, section, or other part or application of this Resolution shall 

be held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such 

unconstitutional or invalid part or application shall be considered as eliminated and so not 

affecting the validity of the remaining portions or applications remaining in full force and effect. 

 Section 5. All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith be and the 

same are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 6. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

adoption. 

ADOPTED by the Town Council of the TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 

FLORIDA, this 3rd day of February, 2015.  

 
ATTEST:      TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
        FLORIDA 
_______________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk              __________________________________ 
        Mayor David Browning  
 
            __________________________________ 
        Vice Mayor Ron Jarriel   
      
                 __________________________________ 
        Council Member Tom Goltzené 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
        __________________________________ 
        Council Member Ryan Liang 
____________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney         

       __________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
  

43 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 7.a. 

ORDINANCES 

Ordinance No. 2014-08 

(Okeechobee Boulevard Corridor Moratorium)   

 

 

 
 

44 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

{00048477.1 1574-0702400 }  

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-08 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR A 
MORATORIUM UNTIL MAY 31, 2015, ON THE PROCESSING AND 
REVIEW OF APPLICATIONS FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN’S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, INCLUDING FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
AMENDMENTS AND TEXT AMENDMENTS, RELATING TO 
COMMERCIAL LAND USES ON PROPERTIES FRONTING ON 
OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD WITHIN THE CORPORATE 
BOUNDARIES OF THE TOWN AS OF DECEMBER 2, 2014; PROVIDING 
FOR EXEMPTIONS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of Chapter 2006-328, Laws of Florida the 

Town Charter of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, on October 10, 2006, the voters within the 

area of unincorporated Palm Beach County known as Loxahatchee Groves voted to incorporate 

as the Town of Loxahatchee Groves (the “Town”); and,  

 WHEREAS, one of the primary motivations of incorporation was to preserve the rural 

nature of the area in which the Town is located; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town initially adopted its Comprehensive Plan in 2009; and,  

 WHEREAS, after an administrative challenge to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan was 

dismissed, the Town’s Comprehensive Plan became effective in August, 2011; and,  

 WHEREAS, since 2012, Palm Beach County has approved several significant projects in 

unincorporated areas of the County near the Town that could affect Okeechobee Boulevard; and,  

 WHEREAS,  since the Town’s Comprehensive Plan has come into effect, the Town has 

received and considered several applications for Land Use Amendments, as well as Text 

Amendments, to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, including for property fronting along 

45 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

{00048477.1 1574-0702400 }  
2 

Okeechobee Boulevard; and,  

 WHEREAS, during the review of the Land Use Amendments and Text Amendments 

received and reviewed by the Town since the Town’s Comprehensive Plan came into effect, issues 

relating to consistency between language in the Comprehensive Plan and the preservation of the 

Town’s rural character were identified by the Town Council and the Town’s Planning and Zoning 

Board during the above referenced review; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town expects continuing pressure to develop commercial uses along 

Okeechobee Boulevard within the Town which may threaten the Town's historical rural character 

and lifestyle; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town’s Planning Consultant has proposed text amendments for the 

Town’s Comprehensive Plan, which has been reviewed by the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board 

and Town Council, but which have not been approved and require additional time to develop and 

adopt; and,  

 WHEREAS, the adoption of a moratorium on the receipt and processing of applications for 

Land Use Applications and Text Amendments to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan relating to 

commercial land uses on property fronting Okeechobee Boulevard will provide the Town with time 

to complete its review of the Comprehensive Plan, and adopt same; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council believes that it is in the best interest of the Town, and its 

residents, to review the Town’s Comprehensive Plan given the issues that have arisen, and to 

consider the need for amendments to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan that will enhance the 

Comprehensive Plan’s consistency with the Town’s historical conditions and vision of remaining a 

rural area; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board considered this Ordinance at its 

46 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

{00048477.1 1574-0702400 }  
3 

December 18, 2014 , meeting and recommended that the Town Council approve the moratorium. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance upon adoption hereof. 

 Section 2. Moratorium Imposed.   The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee 

Groves hereby declares a moratorium as of December 2, 2014, for the time period specified in 

Section 4, on the processing and review of Land Use Amendments and Text Amendments to the 

Town’s Comprehensive Plan relating to commercial land uses on property fronting Okeechobee 

Boulevard.  

 Section 3. Exceptions to Moratorium.  The Town Council hereby declares that 

Amendments to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan initiated by the Town shall be exempt from the 

Moratorium.  

 Section 4. Period of Moratorium.   The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee 

Groves herby declares that the moratorium shall be effective for the period through May 31, 2015, 

unless otherwise modified by the Town Council by ordinance. 

 Section 5. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed to 

the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 6. If any Section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be 

invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 

affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 Section 7.   This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

adoption. 

47 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

{00048477.1 1574-0702400 }  
4 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON (2nd) FIRST READING, THIS 20TH DAY OF 
JANUARY, 2015. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
3RD DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2015. 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
 FLORIDA 

    
 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel    
    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
   
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
         
_________________________________ 
Office of the Town Attorney  

48 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 7.b. 

ORDINANCES 

Ordinance No. 2015-01 

(Wildlife) 

 

 

 
 

49 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00045589.1 1574-0702400 } Page 1 of 15 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-01 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE  
TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE; AMENDING 
PART I, ENTITLED “ADMINISTRATION AND DEFINITIONS,” 
ARTICLE 10 ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, 
AND CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS”, SECTION 10-015, 
ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS,” TO AMEND THE DEFINITION OF 
WILDLIFE PETS, AND TO DELETE THE DEFINITION OF 
WILDLIFE PETS FROM PART II, ENTITLED “ZONING 
DISTRICTS,” ARTICLE 20 ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL ZONING  
DISTRICTS,” SECTION 20-010, ENTITLED “GENERAL 
PROVISIONS”, SECTION (B), ENTITLED “ANIMALS AND 
LIVESTOCK”;  TO AMEND PART II, ENTITLED “ZONING 
DISTRICTS,” ARTICLE 20 ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL ZONING 
DISTRICTS,” SECTION 20-015, ENTITLED “PERMITTED USES” 
AND PART II, ENTITLED “ZONING DISTRICTS,” ARTICLE 25 
ENTITLED “COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS,” SECTION 
25-015, ENTITLED “PERMITTED USES,” AND PART II, 
ENTITLED “ZONING DISTRICTS,” ARTICLE 40 ENTITLED 
“CONSERVATION DISTRICT,” SECTION 40-015, ENTITLED 
“PERMITTED USES” TO CLARIFY THAT AVICULTURE USE IN 
THE AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT, 
EXHIBITION OF WILDLIFE PETS IN THE COMMERCIAL AND 
COMMERCIAL LOW ZONING DISTRICTS, AND WILDLIFE 
OBSERVATION IN THE CONSERVATION DISTRICT ARE 
PERMITTED AS REGULATED BY STATE LAW; TO DELETE 
PART III, ENTITLED “SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS,” 
ARTICLE 80 ENTITLED “CONDITIONAL USES,” SECTION 80-
045, ENTITLED “EXHIBITION OF CLASS I AND CLASS II 
WILDLIFE”, AND SECTION 80-050, ENTITLED 
“AVICULTURE”; PROVIDING FOR INTENT OF THE TOWN TO 
COMPLY WITH THE STATE’S PREEMPTIONS; PROVIDING 
FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council directed Town Administration to review 

provisions of the Town’s Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) relating to the 

50 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00045589.1 1574-0702400 } Page 2 of 15 
 

exhibition of wildlife as it relates to regulation by the Florida Fish and Wildlife 

Conservation Commission (FWC); and,   

WHEREAS, pursuant to the direction of the Town Council, the Town 

Administration has reviewed the matter, including consulting with FWC counsel, on the 

scope of FWC regulation and local government regulation of wildlife exhibition; and,    

WHEREAS, the FWC recommends that local governments not establish different 

standards for wildlife exhibition and other activities within its constitutional jurisdiction 

to regulate, but that such uses may fall within local regulations that are generally 

applicable throughout the Town, such as noise and nuisance; and,   

WHEREAS, consistent with the direction of the Town Council, and based upon 

review of FWC regulations and guidance from FWC counsel, the Town Administration 

has reviewed the provisions of the Town’s ULDC and recommends that certain 

provisions that specifically regulate activities covered by FWC regulation be deleted to 

avoid any potential conflicts with FWC preemption in those areas; and  

WHEREAS, the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, believes it is in the best  

interest of the Town to amend the Town’s ULDC to defer to the state for specific 

regulations of such pursuant to the state’s preemptions as evidenced by Sections 

379.3761 and 379.62, Florida Statutes and Florida Administrative Chapter 68A-6, Florida  

Administrative Code. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 

51 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00045589.1 1574-0702400 } Page 3 of 15 
 

 Section 1. The foregoing “Whereas” clauses are hereby ratified and 

confirmed as being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance 

upon adoption hereof.      

Section 2. Part I, entitled “Administration and Definitions,” Article 10 

entitled “Definitions, Abbreviations, and Construction of Terms”, Section 10-015, 

entitled “Definitions,” of the Town’s Unified Land Development Code, is amended as 

follows: 

Section 10-015. - Definitions.    

Wildlife pets. Shall include only those animals listed, categorized and   regulated  under  

Florida Statutes Section 379.3761:  “Exhibition or sale of wildlife; fees; classifications”, 

Florida Statutes Section 379.62: “Personal possession of wildlife”, Florida Administrative 

Code Chapter 68A-1.002 “Regulation of Wild Animal Life and Freshwater Aquatic Life 

in the State”, and Florida Administrative Code Chapter 68A-6:  “Wildlife as Personal 

Pets”. that have been designated as endangered species, threatened species, or species of 

special concern by the State of Florida or federal government, and are permitted in 

private ownership by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission. This 

definition shall not include any dangerous or poisonous animal of the reptile or 

amphibian species. 

Section 3. Part II, entitled “Zoning Districts,” Article 20 entitled “Residential 

Zoning  Districts,” Section 20-010, entitled “General Provisions”, Section (B), entitled 

“Animals and Livestock”, of the Town’s Unified Land Development Code, is amended as 

follows: 

 

52 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00045589.1 1574-0702400 } Page 4 of 15 
 

 

Section 20-010. - General provisions.  

The following requirements shall apply to the Agricultural Residential (AR) Zoning 

District.  

(B)  Animals and livestock. The breeding raising, and/or keeping of animals and 

livestock as an accessory use to a permanent dwelling shall be subject to the following 

standards:  

(1)  Number. The number of animals and livestock permitted shall be based on 

parcel size as follows.  

a.  Livestock.  Four livestock, not including swine, are permitted per every 

one acre of land, except that parcels of at least five acres are permitted eight livestock per 

every acre of land and parcels over ten acres in size shall have no limit to the number of 

livestock per acre.  

b.  Small domesticated farm animals. Fifteen (15) small domesticated  

animals are permitted per every one-half (1/2) acre of land. 

c.  Large domesticated farm animals.  Two (2) large domesticated animals are 

permitted per every one (1) acre of land. 

d.  Poultry.  Parcels under one acre shall be limited to four (4) birds per every 

one-quarter (1/4) acre. 

e.  Swine.  One (1) swine is permitted per property of one (1) acre or greater, 

except for pot bellied pigs, which shall be considered livestock. 

f.  Wildlife pets. Ten wildlife pets are permitted on properties of five acres or 

greater provided that the wildlife pets are permitted and licensed by the State of Florida. 

53 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00045589.1 1574-0702400 } Page 5 of 15 
 

g. f.  Household pets.  A maximum of ten (1) household pets are permitted on 

a property.  

Section 4. Part II, entitled “Zoning Districts,” Article 20 entitled “Residential 

Zoning Districts,” Section 20-015, entitled “Permitted Uses”, of the Town’s Unified Land 

Development Code, is amended as follows: 

Section 20-015. - Permitted uses.  

Plots located in the Agricultural Residential (AR) zoning districts may be used for the 

following specified uses.  

Principal  Uses Agricultural Residential (AR) 
Single Family Dwelling Permitted  
Mobile Home Permitted w/Special Exception Category B 
Public Schools Permitted 
Congregate Living Facility, Type I Permitted 
Non-Profit Community Recreational 
Facilities 

Permitted w/Special Exception Category A 

Essential Services Permitted 
Commercial Equestrian Operations Permitted  
Wholesale Nursery Permitted 
Retail Nursery Permitted w/Special Exception Category A 
Aviculture Permitted subject to Article 80  See Note 1 below 
Commercial Kennels Not Permitted 
Chipping and Mulching Permitted subject to Article 80 
Feed Lots Not Permitted 
Commercial Animal Manure 
Management 

Not Permitted 

Commercial Chipping and Mulching Permitted subject to Article 80 
Rescued Animal Care Permitted w/Special Exception Category A 
Outdoor Events Permitted subject to Article 80 and to a Special 

Exception Category A   
Agriculture Permitted 
Bona Fide Agriculture Permitted 
Wireless Communication Facilities Permitted w/Special Exception Category A 
Rodeo Events Permitted w/Special Exception Category A 
 
Note 1:  The regulation of exhibition or sale of wildlife and personal possession of 
wildlife are preempted by state law and regulated by the State of Florida.  See Sections 
379.3761 and 379.762, Florida Statutes and Florida Administrative Code Chapters 68A-
1.002 and 68A-6. 

54 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00045589.1 1574-0702400 } Page 6 of 15 
 

Accessory Uses Agricultural Residential (AR) 
Accessory Dwelling Permitted  
Groom’s Quarter Permitted 
Caretaker’s Quarter Permitted 
Home Offices Permitted subject to Article 80 
Residential Enterprise Permitted subject to Article 80 
Wholesale Nursery Permitted 
Retail Nursery Permitted w/Special Exception Category B 
U-Pick Farms Permitted w/Special Exception Category B  
 

Accessory Uses (Continued) Agricultural Residential (AR) 
Private Kennels Permitted  
Private Stables Permitted  
Yard Sales Permitted subject to Article 80 
Veterinarian Services Permitted 
Dog Boarding Permitted 
Temporary Events Permitted w/Special Exception Category C 

 
Section 5. Part II, entitled “Zoning Districts,” Article 25 entitled 

“Commercial Zoning Districts,” Section 25-015, entitled “Permitted Uses”, of the 

Town’s Unified Land Development Code, is amended as follows: 

Section 25-015.  Permitted uses. 

Plots located in the Commercial Low and Commercial Low Office zoning districts may 

be used for one or more the following uses. 

Principal  Uses Commercial Low (CL) Commercial Low 
Office (CLO) 

Adult Entertainment Permitted subject to Article 20 Not Permitted 
Arcade, Video Permitted Not Permitted 
Automobile Repair Garage Permitted Not Permitted 
Bank or Financial Institution Permitted Permitted 
Bar, Lounge, Tavern or Pub Permitted Not Permitted 
Barber Shop, Beauty or Nail 
Salon 

Permitted Not Permitted 

Pool Hall Permitted Not Permitted 
Car Wash, Self-Service or 
Automated 

Permitted Not Permitted 

Catering or Food Service 
Delivery 

Permitted Not Permitted 

55 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00045589.1 1574-0702400 } Page 7 of 15 
 

 
Principal  Uses (continued) Commercial Low (CL) Commercial Low 

Office (CLO) 
Child Care Center Permitted Not Permitted 
Commercial Animal Manure 
Management 

Not Permitted Not Permitted 

Commercial Chipping and 
Mulching 

Permitted subject to Article 80 Not Permitted 

Convenience Store Permitted Not Permitted 
Dance/Night Club Permitted Not Permitted 
Day Labor Hiring Center Permitted w/Special Exception 

Category A 
Not Permitted 

Delicatessen Permitted Not Permitted 
Theater or Auditorium Permitted Not Permitted 
Dry Cleaning or Laundry 
Service 

Permitted Not Permitted 

Employment Agency Not Permitted Not Permitted 
Essential Services and Utilities Permitted Permitted 
 
Exhibition of Wildlife Pets 

Permitted subject to 
Article 80  See Note 2 below 

Not Permitted  See 
Note 2 below 

Gasoline Station Permitted Not Permitted 
Shooting Range See Note 1 below See Note 1 below 
Archery Range Permitted subject to Article 80 Not Permitted 
Hotel Permitted Not Permitted 
Holiday Wayside Stand Permitted subject to Article 80 Permitted subject to 

Article 80 
Laboratory (e.g., medical, 
dental, research) 

Permitted Permitted 

Offices (e.g. business, 
professional, medical) 

Permitted Permitted 

Package Liquor, Beer or Wine 
Store 

Permitted Not Permitted 

 
Outdoor Events 

Permitted subject to Article 80 
and to a Special Exception 
Category B 

Permitted subject to 
Article 80 and to a 
Special Exception 
Category B 

Retail Plant or Produce Sales Permitted Not Permitted 
Restaurant, Fast Food Permitted Not Permitted 
Restaurant, Full Service Permitted Permitted 
Restaurant, Take Out Permitted Permitted 
Retail Services Permitted Not Permitted 
Retail Store Permitted Not Permitted 
Commercial Recreation (e.g. 
batting cages, rink) 

Permitted Not Permitted 

 

56 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00045589.1 1574-0702400 } Page 8 of 15 
 

 

Principal  Uses (continued) Commercial Low (CL) Commercial Low 
Office (CLO) 

Veterinary Clinic or Hospital Permitted Not Permitted 
Warehouse, Self Storage Permitted Not Permitted 
Wireless Communication 
Facilities 

Permitted Permitted 

Adult Day Care Permitted Permitted 
Schools, Public or Private Permitted Not Permitted 
Gym or Fitness Center Permitted Permitted 
 

Note 1:  The regulation of guns and shooting ranges is preempted by state law and 
regulated solely by the State of Florida.  See Sections 790.33 and 790.333, Florida 
Statutes. 
 
Note 2:  The regulation of exhibition or sale of wildlife and personal possession of 
wildlife are preempted by state law and regulated by the State of Florida.  See Sections 
379.3761 and 379.762, Florida Statutes and Florida Administrative Code Chapters 68A-
1.002 and 68A-6. 
 

Section 6. Part II, entitled “Zoning Districts,” Article 40 entitled 

“Conservation District,” Section 40-015, entitled “Permitted Uses”, of the Town’s 

Unified Land Development Code, is amended as follows: 

Section 40-015. - Permitted uses.  

Plots located in the Conservation zoning district may be used for one or more of the  

following specified uses.  

Principal  Uses Parks and Recreation 
Natural open Space Permitted 
Passive Park Permitted 
Walking and Biking Trail Permitted 
Wildlife Observation Permitted  See Note 1 below 
 

Note 1:  The regulation of exhibition or sale of wildlife and personal possession of 
wildlife are preempted by state law and regulated by the State of Florida.  See Sections 
379.3761 and 379.762, Florida Statutes and Florida Administrative Code Chapters 68A-
1.002 and 68A-6. 
 

57 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00045589.1 1574-0702400 } Page 9 of 15 
 

 
Section 7. Part III, entitled “Supplemental Regulations,” Article 80 entitled 

“Conditional Uses,” Section 80-045, entitled “Exhibition of Class I and Class II 

Wildlife”, of the Town’s Unified Land Development Code, is amended as follows: 

Section 80-045. - Exhibition of Class I and Class II Wildlife.  

Individuals providing care and permanent habitat for Class I and Class II Wildlife that 

have been abused, neglected or otherwise need sanctuary may request a license from the 

Town to allow limited exhibition of said wildlife, subject to the provisions of this section.  

(A) For purposes of this section only, exhibition of wildlife shall be defined as a 

public or private showing of Class I and Class II wildlife for financial or other 

consideration.  

(B) For purposes of this section, Class I and Class II wildlife are defined pursuant 

to Chapter 68-A6, F.A.C., as amended.  

(C) The property on which the animals are kept shall have a minimum plot size of 

five acres and a minimum plot width and length of 300 feet and must conform with all of 

the minimum requirements established in the Florida Administrative Code.  

(D) No wildlife exhibition license may be issued for a location that is within 

1,000 feet of another licensed wildlife exhibitor.  

(E) Signage is not permitted. 

(F) The owner of the animals must hold a USDA, Animal Welfare Act, Class C 

Exhibitor License and a Florida Fish and Game Conservation Commission Class I or II 

(as applicable) License, and must live on the property on a permanent basis.  

(G) The owner of the animals shall maintain 501(C)(3) non-profit status for the 

specific purpose of caring and providing habitat for the wild animals.  

58 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00045589.1 1574-0702400 } Page 10 of 15 
 

(H) All wildlife habitat areas shall be surrounded by a minimum of a six foot high 

barrier/fence to prevent unauthorized access. The wildlife habitat areas shall also be fully 

screened from all property lines to a height of six feet through the use of landscape 

materials or opaque fence materials.  

I) Public premises liability coverage in the amount of $1,000,000.00 shall be 

maintained at all times. The policy must name the Town as an additional insured and 

must be issued by an insurance company authorized by the Florida Department of 

Insurance to do business in the State of Florida. The Town Attorney must approve the 

policy.  

(J) The number of wild animals on the property shall be limited to three per acre. 

(K) At no time shall the property be unattended and without the presence of 

someone licensed to handle wild animals, or with at least six months experience working 

under the jurisdiction of the licensee's Federal and State licenses when the owner of the 

animal(s) is away from the premises.  

(L) All parking shall be accommodated on-site, and shall be screened from view 

along all property lines adjoining any private or public street, or residential plot. Parking 

areas shall be set back at least 25 feet from any residential plot line. Parking areas need 

not be paved.  

(M) Public admission shall be by appointment only, and shall be limited to 40 

people on the property at any given time, except that groups from educational institutions 

arriving by bus shall be limited to 100 people, and that special events with attendance 

greater than that provided for herein may be held up to 12 times per year, provided the 

owner notifies the Town Clerk's Office in writing at least five days prior to the event. The 

59 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00045589.1 1574-0702400 } Page 11 of 15 
 

notification shall state the date and hours, nature of the event, and maximum number of 

people expected.  

(N) Noise levels, including noises resulting from public admission, shall not 

exceed the limits set forth in Section 50-010, " Excessive Noise."  

(O) Noise abatement. Wildlife habitat areas shall be designed, constructed and 

located using noise abatement measures (e.g., locating wildlife which excessively 

screech, howl, or make loud noises away from property lines; maintaining a thick, 

vegetated buffer along property lines) to help ensure that noise levels do not exceed the 

limits set forth in Section 50-010, " Excessive Noise."  

(P) Upon determination that an application for an exhibition of Class I and Class 

II wildlife license satisfies the criteria of this section, the Town shall notice property 

owners within 1,000 feet of the subject property, by certified mail, that an application for 

a wild animal habitat license will be administratively approved and issued ten days from 

the mailing date indicated on the notice, unless a written objection is received by the 

Town Clerk within the ten day period.  

(Q) Upon satisfying all of the conditions for licensure, a license under this section 

shall be issued administratively unless the Town receives written objection from a 

noticed property owner within the ten day response period. In the case of a timely 

objection, the application for licensure shall be scheduled for the next available Town 

Council agenda as an advertised public hearing. After hearing the testimony of affected 

property owners, the Town Council may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the 

application for licensure based upon consideration of the following criteria:  

60 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://library.municode.com/HTML/14998/level2/PTIIISURE_ART50PUNU.html#PTIIISURE_ART50PUNU_S50-010EXNO
https://library.municode.com/HTML/14998/level2/PTIIISURE_ART50PUNU.html#PTIIISURE_ART50PUNU_S50-010EXNO


{00045589.1 1574-0702400 } Page 12 of 15 
 

(1) That the use is compatible with the existing natural environment and 

other properties in the vicinity;  

(2) That there will be adequate provision for safe traffic movement, both 

vehicular and pedestrian, in the area which will serve the use;  

(3) That there are adequate setbacks, buffering, and general amenities in 

order to control any adverse effects of noise, light, dust and other potential 

nuisances; and,  

(4) That the land area is sufficient, appropriate and adequate for the use as 

proposed. Conditions placed upon the license by Town Council may supplement 

the requirements of this section contained in provisions (A) through (O).  

(R)  Licenses are valid only to the person named on the license and shall not be 

transferable. 

(S)  Upon a second violation of any one or more provisions of this section within 

a 24 month period, as determined pursuant to the Town's code enforcement procedures, 

the Town shall notify the licensee, by certified mail, of its intent to revoke the license. 

The licensee or designee may initiate an appeal of the revocation by filing written notice 

of intent to appeal with the Town Clerk's Office no later than 15 days from receipt of the 

Town's notice of intent to revoke the license. The license will be administratively 

revoked should the licensee not file an appeal within the allotted time. The Town Clerk 

shall schedule the appeal for the next available Town Council meeting. In determining 

the existence of extenuating factors contributing to the code violation(s), Council may 

uphold the revocation or continue the license with any conditions Council may deem 

appropriate to protect the public health, safety and welfare.  

61 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00045589.1 1574-0702400 } Page 13 of 15 
 

(T)  Nothing within this section shall be construed to prevent the Town Council 

from revoking the license at any time, provided that after conducting an advertised public 

hearing on the matter, a supermajority of council members make a determination that the 

licensed activity no longer satisfies the criteria for licensure.  

(U)  All exhibition of Class I and Class II wildlife shall occur on a parcel that has 

a land use designation of Commercial Low.  

Section 8. Part III, entitled “Supplemental Regulations,” Article 80 entitled 

“Conditional Uses,” Section 80-050, entitled “Aviculture”, of the Town’s Unified Land 

Development Code, is amended as follows: 

Section 80-050. - Aviculture.  

Permits for aviculture, as defined in Article 10, "Definitions, Abbreviations, and 

Construction of Terms" may be issued in the Agricultural Residential (AR) zoning 

district subject to the following:  

(A) Minimum plot size requirements.  

(1) Two acres for 40 to 200 birds. 

(2) Five acres for 201 or more birds. 

(B) Breeder.  

 (1) The minimum plot size shall be two acres; and 

(2) Shelters, cages and accessory structures shall be set back a minimum 

of 50 feet from all property lines; and  

(3) Outdoor shelters and cages shall be contained to specific areas of the 

plot and completely screened from view from adjacent properties with a visual 

62 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00045589.1 1574-0702400 } Page 14 of 15 
 

barrier. Such barriers may include natural vegetation, landscaping, fencing or 

other opaque structures; and  

(4) The breeder shall locate birds that excessively screech, chirp, crow or 

make loud noises away from residential properties to the maximum extent 

possible; and  

(5) The care, licensing, registration and inspections shall be as required by 

applicable regulations; and  

(6) Any avicultural endeavor shall comply with Article 50, "Public 

Nuisances," of this Code.  

Section 9.  Nothing in this Ordinance is intended to exempt any uses regulated by 

the FWC to be exempt from provisions of the ULDC generally applicable throughout the 

Town; provided that it is also the intent of the Town Council that the Town’s ordinances 

and Unified Land Development Code be interpreted and administered consistent with the 

state’s preemptions of the regulation of wildlife pets. 

Section 10.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances, and all Resolutions or parts of 

Resolutions, in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 11.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any 

person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 

applications of this Ordinance that can be given affect without the invalid provision or 

application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

Section 12.  It is the intention of the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee 

Groves that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the 

Unified Land Development Code of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, that the 

63 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00045589.1 1574-0702400 } Page 15 of 15 
 

Sections of this ordinance may be renumbered, re-lettered, and the word “Ordinance” 

may be changed to “Section”, “Article” or such other word or phrase in order to 

accomplish such intention.   

Section 13.  This Ordinance shall become effective as provided by law.   

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS 20th DAY 
JANUARY, 2015. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, 
THIS 3RD DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2015. 
 
          
      TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
      FLORIDA 
ATTEST: 

 _______________________________ 
      Mayor David Browning 
Janet Whipple, Town Clerk   

 ____________________________________ 
 Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel 

 
 ____________________________________ 
 Council Member Tom Goltzené 
   
 ____________________________________ 
 Council Member Ryan Liang 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 ____________________________________ 
 Council Member Jim Rockett 
 

_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney                           

        
 

64 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 8.a.  

MANAGER’S UPDATE 

 

Agenda Item Report (AIR) 

65 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 

Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.a. 

MEETING DATE: 2/3/2015 

 
PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II 

  
SUBJECT:  Manager Update  
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  The Town Council requests updates on activities and issues. 
 
Problem Solution:   Provide the Council with an update. 

The Council requested they be updated on the various issues facing the Town, it is noted that 
items in this category be provided as part of a written report. 
 

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

  
• Trails: At the Town Council meeting of 11/18/2014, the Council approved the Town 

drafted ILA for funding the trails, maintenance easements, and roads.  The ILA was 
transmitted to the LGWCD on Wednesday, 11/19/2014.    

o Subsequent to the ILA transmittal, the Town Attorney, and staff met with the 
LGWCD attorney and administrator on Friday, 11/21/2014, at the office of the 
District’s attorney.   

o Substantial progress was made.  The Town attorney provided the District’s 
attorney with a summary of the discussion points to be incorporated within a 
jointly prepared ILA. 

o On or about December 3, the Town received comments from the attorney for the 
LGWCD. 

o On December 9, the Town Attorney and I were reviewing the points of the 
agreement.   

o This working group will labor to complete the agreement and present to the 
respective legislative boards as soon as practical.  

o As of December 30, 2014, the Town is on hold pending a response from LGWCD. 
o Recent discussion on January 13, 2015 with the Administrator indicates the Town 

should be reviewing a response soon. 
o On January 23, 2015, the Town received an ILA from the LGWCD without first 

agreeing to the initial discussion positions tentatively agreed upon at the 
November 21, 2014, meeting.  We requested the LGWCD provide a document 
which can be edited and changes tracked instead of the document provided which 

66 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



would the Town can use instead of having the Town Attorney re-type the 
agreement at additional cost. 

o Subsequent to receipt and request, on January 23, 2015, the Town was informed 
the LGWCD was incorporating a few more tweaks to the agreement.  Upon 
completion, they will send the document to the Town. 

• Building:  Discussions with Atlantic Land Companies regarding their site plan occurred 
and this item is scheduled for the P&Z review in December.   

o The site plan was approved by the LPA at its December meeting. 
o Set for the January 20, 2015 agenda 
o Town Council public hearing on this item has been continued to February 17, 

2015. 
• Building:  Update to work related to the Chamber of Commerce building was included in 

the November 18, 2014 agenda.  The Council instructed staff to begin negotiations with 
the Chamber of Commerce staff. 

o Staff has entered this discussion, the Town Attorney and staff had a teleconference 
to draft a contract for the acquisition. 

o A teleconference was held on 11/24/2014 with Wayne Burns, Executive Director 
of the Chamber. 

o Staff is attempting to finalize negotiations and should be able to complete the 
process and present a contract for purchase at the 12/16/2014 Council meeting. 

o On December 4, 2014, staff and Vice Mayor Jarriel attended the Tri-cities League 
BBQ in Belle Glade and discussed the subject with PBC Commission and staff.   

o December 9th, the Town Attorney and I received a revised contract from the 
Chamber of Commerce which included significant changes, some of substance, to 
the contract the Town submitted. 

o Due to some of the items included in the revised contract, I feel it is necessary to 
delay the contract consideration until the January meeting. 

o Staff continues to be in discussions with various parties on this subject.  Staff 
members and Town Attorney have been actively pursuing a positive response 
from the County regarding a donation of the land. 

o Dialogue between County and Town staff indicates that an offer by the Town to 
purchase the land for $20,000 would not be a recommended denial but a request 
for the County Commission to provide direction to County staff in this matter. 

o Staff has submitted a letter to Robert Weisman, County Administrator, advising 
the Town continues to affirm the position of receiving a waiver on the cost of the 
land; however, pursuant to Council direction, staff negotiated with the County 
staff and I advised the Town is prepared to offer $20,000 to purchase the property 
from the County and agree to the stipulation of the sale that (1) the property use 
will remain public purpose and (2) the County retains 75% of mineral rights for 
any possible future determination . 

o On January 26, 2015, Mayor Browning and I met with County Commissioner 
McKinley to discuss the agenda item and the Town’s willingness to meet the 
stipulations and pay $20,000 for the land.  It is my understanding, the 
Commissioner is agreed to move the item on the February 3, 2015, agenda.  

• Traffic:  Staff is working with Minto to draft an agreement between Minto and the Town 
for the funding of the traffic light at Okeechobee Boulevard and D Road. 

o A discussion with Minto’s attorney on December 29, 2014, indicated Palm Beach 
County would agree for the Town and Minto to enter into a funding agreement 
which may exclude the County. 

67 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



o No activity on this item as of January 14, 2015. 
o No activity on this item as of January 26, 2015. 

• Building:  Staff had a meeting with the Day property representative to preliminary 
discuss the prospective site plan for the property on Tuesday, December 9.  The meeting 
was to review site plan requirements and process 

o We reviewed the site plan submission requirements 
o Discussed the site plan specifically  

 addressing conditions of approval 
 perimeter landscaping buffer requirements 
 horse trail potential 

o Timing of submittal and hearings 
 PBC manages traffic related issues and may need to be at meetings 
 LGWCD to affirm positive outfall for drainage 
 Interconnection to westerly property discussion 
 Set RETGAC meeting for January 2015 
 P&Z meeting for January 2015 
 About March present to Town Council.  

o No Activity since the 12/16/2014 meeting.  
o On 1/12/2015, staff and Mr. Lipp, met with representatives reviewing Rural Vista 

guidelines assisting the representatives determine the guidelines.  
o This item is due to be presented to the LPA and RETGAC committees jointly at 

their February 19, 2015, meeting. 
• Roads:  This office met with Angela Hendrichsen Sandoval, P. E., PMP, Section Leader, 

and Ken Mudd, Resource Professional IV, representing South Florida Water Management 
District (SFWMD) in reference to a permit the SFWMD issued in 1982 for a road and 
swale improvement on 43rd.  As I understand the purpose of the meeting, SFWMD was 
looking to determine whether or not the Town would assist them in correcting a 
deficiency in the road and swale drainage system on the road.  The Town will be 
contacted in the future regarding the next step to be taken to correct the problem.  

o No activity since the 12/16/2014 meeting. 
o No activity from SFWMD representative as of 1/14/2015. 
o This office received communication from SFWMD regarding their internal work 

to plan their path forward on January 15, 2015.  Upon completing their planning 
effort, they will be in touch with staff. 

• Roads:  Negotiations continue for B Road improvements which will go from Southern 
Boulevard to Okeechobee Boulevard.   

o Staff was working toward holding the second hearing on an ordinance in 
November to provide appropriate zoning classification to the involved parcels.   

o Initially, staff worked to have this item tentatively move forward for the December 
2, 2014 Council Meeting. 
 This effort is being moved to a January timeframe. 

o Town Attorney and I met with the working group on Friday 11/21/2014 in West 
Palm Beach.  Significant discussion occurred and the Town Attorney and I 
reiterated the Town Council position that no funding will come from the Town for 
this improvement. 

o The LGWCD will be providing necessary easement for this road prior to the 
project initiation.  

o Another meeting was held on 12/30/2014 in preparation of a January approval 
meeting. There continue to be funding issues to be resolved in order to protect the 

68 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town from incurring any cost. 
o A draft agreement is presented and currently under review by the Town’s 

Attorney, Management, and Engineer as of 1/14/2015. 
o All the parties are working to have at least one more meeting which includes legal, 

and engineering to make sure the information is accurately reflect and understood 
by all parties.  This meeting is scheduled for the week of February 2, 2015.  If 
agreed, this item should appear on the February 17, 2015 agenda for Council 
consideration. 

 
  
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
     
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  
  Not applicable.  
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

  
Motion to receive and file report. 
 
 

69 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

NEW BUSINESS 

Item 10.a.b. 

No Back up 

Item 10.b. 

Letter to Jess Santamaria  

70 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



71 of 71   TC Agenda Packet 02/03/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	AGENDA
	2.a.Consent Agenda Attorney Invoice
	2.b. Consent Agenda Minutes 11/18/2014
	5.a. Committee Reports Financials
	6.a. Resolution No. 2015-10
	7.a. Ordinance No. 2014-08
	7.b. Ordinance No. 2015-01
	8.a. Manager's Report
	10.c. New Business - Letter for Santamaria



